UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS

EASTERN DIVISION

)

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, )

)

Plaintiff, )

‘ )

V. )

)

PHOENIX AVATAR, LLC doing business )

as AVATAR NUTRITION, )
) Case No. 04C 2897

DIL, LLC, )

) Judge Holderman

ANITET T T INT
e

Magistrate Judge Schenkier

MARK M. SADEK,

JAMES LIN, and
CHRISTOPHER M. CHUNG
doing business as A I T HERBAL
MARKETING,

Defendants.
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PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION WITH ASSET FREEZE AND OTHER EQUITABLE
RELIEF AS TO DEFENDANTS PHOENIX AVATAR, LL.C, AND DJL., LLC

Plaintiff, Federal Trade Commission (“Commission” or “FTC”), pursuant to Sections
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The TRO having been granted and served with the Complaint and Summons on all
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exhibits filed herein, and being fully advised in the premises, it is now ORDERED,

ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:

FINDINGS OF FACT
1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and over all parties
hereto;
2. Venue, process, and service of process are proper;
3. There is good cause to believe that Defendants have engaged in and are likely to

engage in acts and practices that violate Sections 5 and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45 and
52, and the Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2003
(“CAN-SPAM Act”), 15U.S.C. § 7701, et seq.;
4. In light of the foregoing findings, the Commission is likely to prevail on the
merits of this action;
5. There is good cause to believe that immediate and irreparable harm will result

from the Defendants’ ongoing violations of Sections 5 and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45
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Order with Asset Freeze, Other Equitable Relief, and Order to Show Cause Why a Preliminary
Injunction Should Not Issue, and in the accompanying legal memorandum, declarations and

exhibits, show that Defendants have engaged in a concerted course of illegal activity in
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of Sections 5 and 12 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45 and 52, and the CAN-SPAM Act, 15

U.S.C. § 7701, et seq. Defendants have repeatedly concealed their true identity; thus, there is

good cause to believe that Defendants will attempt to conceal the scope of their deliberate illegal

actions to avoid returning their ill-gotten gains to consumers injured by their unlawful practices if

not restrained from doing so by Order of this Court;
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financial information from consumers, and communicating with consumers; (2) developing,
providing or arranging for the development or provision of marketing materials, including, but
not limited to, Web site and commercial electronic message content; (3) providing names of, or
arranging for the provision of, names of potential customers; (4) performing marketing services

of any kind; or (5) acting as an officer or director of a business entity.
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been conducted and evaluated in an objective manner by persons qualified to do so, using
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metal dealer.
8. “Material” means likely to affect a person’s choice of, or conduct regarding,

goods or services.

9. “Person” means a natural person, an organization or other legal entity, including
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10.  “Plaintiff” means the Federal Trade Commission (“Commission’).
11.  “Web site” means a set of electronic documents, usually a home page and

subordinate pages, readily viewable on a computer by anyone with access to the Web, standard

software, and knowledge of the web site’s location or address.










indirectly:

A Selling liquidating aEEQiQninnguaaneningJ:myeﬁjncunanm encnimberine

pledging, concealing, dissipating, spending, withdrawing, or otherwise disposing of any funds,
real or personal property, or other assets or any interest therein, wherever located, including any

assets outside the territorial United States, which are:
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subject to access by, or belonging to, any Defendant; or
3. in the actual or constructive possession of, or owned or controlled by, or

subject to access by, or belonging to, any corporation, partnership, trust or any other
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those acquired by loan or gift. Defendants shall hold all assets, including without limitation,
payments, loans, and gifts, received after service of this Order.

IV. DUTIES OF ASSET HOLDERS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending determination of the Commission’s request
for a permanent injunction, any financial institution, or any person or other entity served with a
copy of this Order, or who otherwise has actual knowledge of this Order, that has possession,
custody, or control of any account, asset, or document held on behalf of, or relating or belonging

to, any Defendant, shall:
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C. Provide to counsel for the Commission, within three (3) business days, a
statement setting forth:
1. the identification of each account or asset titled in the name, individually
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to Section III above, whether in whole or in part;
2. the balance of each such account, or a description of the nature and value
of such asset;

3. the identification of any safe deposit box that is either titled in the name

PN DU TN EE P | ISR S SRpY, I SG DUpY, [ e P S I | T~ ~ 4
=

4







participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service, facsimile, or




VII. DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants shall immediately provide a copy of this

Order to each affiliate, partner, division, sales entity, successor, assign, officer, director,
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representative of any Defendant. Within five (5) calendar days following service of this Order by
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who advertised, marketed, promoted, offered for sale, distributed, or sold any product for

or on_hehalf of Defendants.

XI. EXPEDITED DISCOVERY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, notwithstanding the provisions of Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure 26(d) and (f) and 30(a)(2)(C), and pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure
30(a), 34, and 45, the parties are granted leave, at any time after service of this Order, to:

A. Take the deposition, on three (3) calendar days’ notice, of any person, whether or
not a party, for the purpose of discovering the nature, location, status, and extent of the assets of
Defendants, or their affiliates or subsidiaries; the nature and location of documents reflecting
Defendants’ business transactions, or the business transactions of Defendants’ affiliates or

ctheidiaries: the lacation of anv nremices where Defendante directlv or throueh anv third partv.



their affiliates or sybsidiaries: the location of documents reflecting the business transactions of




XIV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT IS SO ORDERED, this & % dayof /7lde] 2004, at /2 :Sva.m.
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United States District vJudge




